
 

 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday January 17th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the January 17th, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board 
o Michelle Feliccitti – Inquiry on Lyman Emblem and Bunganut Parks & Recs 

b. Mail                • MMA     • SMPDC 
c. Complaints 

 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
   Review/ approve meeting minutes 1/3/2023 
 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #31 in the amount of $22,848.26 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #32 (FY2023) in the amount of $89,097.00 

 

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Health Officer. Tabled from last meeting.   

 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
a. Road Commissioner –  
b. Fire Chief – Request for funds, see email.  
c. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Dave Alves Liaison Report/update 
d. Treasurer – Expense Summary Report 1-12-23 
e. CEO – Policy Update recommendation. See email.  
f. Tax Clerk – December Report 
g. Other  -  

 
ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discuss scheduling Budget Workshops  
b. ARPA Memorandum 
c. Mail Subscription request, see email 
d. Approval for committee access to building 
e. Review Mowing Contract with KCB 
f. Review Plowing contract with Dayton Snow Fighters  
g. Annual Town Report – Dedicating to group/individual 
h. Newsletter discussion  
i. RSU #57 Board member opening, discuss appointing a new member 
j. Review/Approve PO’s for Cemetery Tre removal services. PO# 1610, 1611, 1614, & 1607 

 
 

OTHER 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) Personnel Matters 
 
ADJOURN 



From: Michelle Feliccitti
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: Re: next meeting
Date: Wednesday, January 11, 2023 6:32:28 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

For the emblem, having maybe a contest for local seniors in the arts program to design an emblem for the town.

For Bunganut, talking about the YMCA, the money that it spends and brings in, the disjointedness of
playgrounds in town and possibility of a future community center at Bunganut if that's the chosen location of a
playground...consolidating things to one area so to speak.  The difficulty at present getting to the playground for
elderly with their grandchildren at Bunganut...maybe a switchback would be easier?

On Wed, Jan 11, 2023 at 2:29 PM Selectmen Board Clerk <selectboard@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Michelle,

I’ll check with the chair. In the meantime, do you have any information you want to provide regarding the
topics below? Or even just a brief summary. That way I can put it in their agenda packets they can review
before the meeting.

Thanks,

Lindsay Gagne 

Select Board Clerk

FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642

207-499-7562
selectboard@lyman-me.gov
lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records
which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message
in error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

ITEM#2 (a.) Michell Feliccitti Inquiry

mailto:mfeliccitti@gmail.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/






From: Michelle Feliccitti <mfeliccitti@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 11, 2023 12:59 PM
To: Selectmen Board Clerk <selectboard@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: next meeting

Could I get on the agenda to talk about a Town emblem/crest and also for Bunganut/Parks and Rec?

TY!

--

Michelle Feliccitti, RPR
"A Generous Heart, Kind Speech, and a Life of Service and Compassion are the Things Which Renew
Humanity"

Gaige & Feliccitti, LLC
Court Reporting and Video Conferencing Services

Registered Professional Reporters

75 York Woodford Street
Portland, Maine  04101

(207) 854-5296
www.gandfreporting.com
scheduling@gandfreporting.com

"We can connect you anywhere in the world with video conferencing depositions and
reporters."

mailto:mfeliccitti@gmail.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
http://www.gaigereporting.com/
mailto:scheduling@gandfreporting.com


ITEM# 2: (b.) Mail







ITEM #2: (b.) Mail







Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 3, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 4 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 
David Alves (Via Zoom), Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts 
Selectboard members absent: None 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Select Board Public Hearing – Present information and allow public comment on Article questions to

be voted on at Special Town Meeting scheduled January 18th, 2023
Rusty Blackington – Opens the public hearing at 6:00 pm. He gives a brief overview of Article two.
David Alves – States in regards to Article 2, he has been working on a preliminary report. This report
will identify properties that may be of future use for the Town and other properties that may be
potential to sell. There are several lots already identified as future use including a snowmobile club
and several lots for fire department use. Twelve lots are identified as landlocked and three lots
identified as unbuildable. Other lots have not been identified for future use and review is pending.
He suggests to the board of looking into putting in place right-of-way’s to protect local trail systems.
In regards to using a Real Estate Broker, he proposes the Town would hire a broker that has the
ability to complete a market analysis for each parcel the board deems worthy to sell; the board
would vote on a price at which to advertise the property, and by using a Real Estate Broker this
profession has a responsibility to conduct themselves ethically. The board functions as a majority
and no one member at any time could make a decision on anything.
Brian Dulong – States he disagrees with selling the land the Snowmobile Club currently uses. He asks
if the Broker would have to go with the highest price.
David Alves – Explains the broker would present to the board any and all offers for the board to
decide.
David Dulong – Asks the board how they will choose the broker.
John Tibbets – States they would put out a request for proposal to hire a broker.
Susan Briggs – States a sealed bid or public auction shows more transparency where the bids and
auction is done publicly. She’s not in favor of a broker because she believes the public will never see
the transaction between the board and the broker. She asks the board what they are raising the
money for and if there is an absolute need to sell off the property.
John Tibbetts – States the Town committed $60,000 to the cemetery to come from land sales
already and with the new charter they will need to look at expanding the Town Hall.
David Dulong – States when the Town sold the Cousins School they used a broker to do the market
analysis but proceeded with sealed bid.
Roger Roy – Asks the board if doing sealed bid do they have the authority to pick whichever bid they
want no matter the amount. He states the snowmobile club shouldn’t be sold.
Thomas Hatch – The board would have to decide on setting up the parameters for sealed bids.
David Dulong – States the board should renew the lease for the snowmobile club.
Josh Eon- He asks the board if they would ever sell parcels of land to developers and favor
developers over other buyers. He asks if the board would consider just hiring a broker for appraisals
first before considering using a broker for sales.
Thomas Hatch – States the board would decide as a board.
Nicole Eon – States a lot of the parcels are subdividable and asks the board how they would handle
urban sprawl.
Lindsay Gagne – States the planning board reviews subdivisions and would be the ones to consider
any detriment to the Town.
John Tibbetts – Suggests putting land locked parcels out to bid and offer to abutters to bid on them.

DRAFT
ITEM #3: Minutes



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 3, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 4 

Thomas Hatch – Reads a comment into the meeting emailed to the board from Ann Tardiff.  
Brian Dulong – States each parcel should go to a vote to the Town before its sold. He asks the board 
what their plan is.  
David Alves – States the plan is to identify which parcels could be used for future growth of the 
Town and using a Real Estate agent to potentially sell what is deemed unnecessary for the Town and 
get the best market value, and the money collected could go towards infrastructure and keeping the 
tax base down. There will likely be multiple meetings to discuss the process and provide information 
as the project develops.  
Susan Briggs – States the article question should be rewritten to do a feasibility study 
Thomas Hatch – States the board already voted David as the liaison on this project to conduct a 
feasibility study.  
David Alves – Suggests when the data is collected the board can do another public hearing.  
Brian Dulong – States the board could sell the land locked parcels and use the money to fund a 
study.  
Michelle Feliccitti – Asks if the board would consider if the time came to it, to put to a vote to the 
Town the offers they receive. 
No other comments on Article 2. Discussion moves to Article three.  
David Dulong – States the revised charter outlines the responsibilities of the Town Manager which 
includes policy revision and drafting of job descriptions.  

b. Close public hearing and open regular Select Board meeting
Public hearing is closed at 7:18 pm.

c. Vote to approve warrant for Special Town Meeting.
Discussion on Article three. Budget committees’ recommendation was to take $15,030.50 out of
surplus and add to the existing $5,000.00 HR job study as opposed to the select board
recommendation to take $9,630.50 from the Town Hall Feasibility study and $5,400.00 out of
surplus and add to the $5,000.00 HR job study. Select board discussion, they are in favor of taking
out of surplus as the Budget Committee recommends.
John Tibbetts makes a motion to support the budget committee’s recommendation on Article
three
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes 5-0-0
Discussion on Article two and consideration of removing it until a plan is developed.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to remove Article two from the warrant and work towards
solidifying more data
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion.
Discussion on revisiting the article question and the process at Annual Town meeting
Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board

Pauline Weiss – States Harry’s and Jacksons corner don’t do postings so the board can’t post the
warrant at either of those places. She suggests the board can use Lyman’s Pizzeria or the Maine
Homestead Market.
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to rescind locations of Harry’s and Jacksons Corner and replace it
with the Lyman Pizzeria and homestead market.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 3, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 4 

b. Mail
o Historical Society o FCC Letter o MBH Letter o RSU #57 Annual Report

c. Complaints - None

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
Review/ approve meeting minutes 12/19/2022 
David Alves – Motions to approve minutes. Thomas Hatch seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #29 in the amount of $25,342.96

Jessica Picard motions to approve. Thomas Hatch seconds. Motion masses: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #30 (FY2023) in the amount of $595,509.10

Thomas Hatch motions to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Health Officer. Discussion from last meeting.

Jessica Picard - makes a motion to table the item to next meeting
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner –

Brad Nikel – States all storm damaged has been cleaned up. We have not reached the threshold for
FEMA support for the storm damage so they will not be applying for FEMA. He has one quote for the
transfer station expenses on repairs. He is continuing to solicit more quotes.

b. Fire Chief –  None
c. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Dave Alves Liaison Report/update – No updates
d. Treasurer – Expense Summary Report 12/29/2022
e. CEO – No updates
f. Tax Clerk – No updates
g. Other  -

Pauline Weiss – asks the board to appoint Barbara Hull and Irene Single as Ballot Clerks
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Barbara Hull and Irene Single as Ballot Clerks for the Special
Town Meeting.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discuss scheduling Budget Workshops

Workshop is scheduled for Thursday January 12, 2023 at 6:00pm.
b. RFP – Open sealed bids for Mowing Contract

Two mowing bids received. One from KCB Landscaping and one from LA Lawncare Inc.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to award the contract to KCB Landscaping
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. RFP – Open sealed bids for Winter Maintenance of Town Roads
One bid received from Dayton Snow Fighters.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to award the contract to Dayton Snow Fighters
John Tibbets – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Auditing Services Contract Expires 6/2023. Review quotes for services
One quote was received from our prior auditor. Board agrees to solicit more quotes.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 3, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 4 

e. EcoMaine Grant Application Letter
Lindsay Gagne – Explains this came from the EcoMaine Rep. This is a letter EcoMaine drafted in
support of them receiving grant funding. This letter does not obligate the Town to anything other
than to offer its support.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to accept the letters in support of EcoMaine
John Tibbets – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

OTHER 
Lindsay Gagne – Received an email from the Tree service that will be cutting trees for the cemetery. They are asking the 
board if they can store their equipment on Town Property while they conduct work and if so, where they can store it.  
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to allow them to store their equipment on the Property off of Davis Road.  
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (E) Attorney/ legal matters
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to go into executive session 1.M.R.S.A §405 (E) Attorney/ legal matters
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
The board goes into executive session

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to come out of executive session 
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ADJOURN 
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to adjourn.  
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington (Chair) 

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

_____________________________________________ 

David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

John Tibbetts

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 4 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated January 3rd, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant















Local Health Officer 

• Appointed for 3-year terms

• Must be qualified by education, training, or experience in the field of public health. If not qualified as such,

then must meet qualification standards within 6 months after appointment.

• Liaison for “Public Health Threats” = Any condition or behavior that can be reasonably expected to place

others at significant risk of exposure to infections with a communicable disease.

• 5 Primary Job Roles include:

o Overall health resource to the community

o Mediator and enforcer of complaints that cannot be resolved

o Reports to the Select Board on community public health status

o Reports to ME CDC and DHHS on any perceived public health threats

• Legal Requirements

o Keep record of all proceedings, transactions, ordinances, orders and rules acted by the LHO (May

keep a log of all actions taken and responded to and provide copies to admin)

o Report cases of or facts related to a communicable disease to the Commissioner

o During declared health emergency, report to the Commissioner facts re: potential notifiable

diseases related to the declared health emergency.

o Handles complaints by members of the public concerning conditions posing a public health threat

o With consent of the owner, inspect any place or premises where filth, or conditions posing a public

health threat are known or believed to exist. If inspection is refused, LHO shall apply for an

inspection warrant from District Court. (CDC recommends the Town Attorney weigh in if this would

be necessary before applying for the warrant)

o After consultation with the Commissioner, order removal of nuisances posing a public health threat

o Act as a resource connecting residents with public health services provided by ME CDC.

o Enforce public health safety laws:

▪ Pertaining to exclusion of students from school (Title 20-A MRSA §6356)

▪ Pertaining to Control of Brown Tail moth (Title 20-A MRSA §1444)

▪ Pertaining to removal of nuisance of a dead animal (Title 20-A MRSA §1561 & 1562

▪ Pertaining to the establishment of temporary health care facilities (Title 20-A §1762

▪ Pertaining to prohibited dumping (Title 30-A §3352)

• May work in correlation with the CEO, ACO, Fire Chief, and Local Plumbing Inspector.

• Enforces all state laws, DHHS Rules and Local Health Ordinances

• Other Duties may include

o Assist with Animal/ Insect borne disease in conjunction with ACO

▪ Reporting cases of strange animal behavior to DHHS, HETL, Dept. of Inland Fishery &

Wildlife, Dept. Of Agriculture, Maine Game Warden.

o Assist with Environmental/ Land Use nuisances that may pose a health risk

▪ Sewage, solid waste, septic tanks, faulty systems, etc. (Usually works in conjunction with

CEO, LHO are not specifically authorized to intervene in these areas.

o LHO Shall receive and examine the nature of complaints made by members of the public concerning

conditions posing a public health threat or potential health threat.

o May assist in protecting drinking water and water sources in conjunction with EPA and DHHS.

o Assist with food sanitation issues with restaurants and other establishments in conjunction with the

Health Inspection Program. District Sanitarian can inspect/ investigate.

ITEM #5: (a.) Health Officer



Maine Local Health Officers Manual – Revised August 2015
36

APPENDIX B. LHO RESOURCE CHART

Problem Area LHO LPI/CEO ACO IFW Professional 
Consultant 

Manufact'd 
Housing 
Board 

DHHS 

Reference
Landlord tenant issues - 
Implied warranty and 
covenant of habitability 

T14 M.R.S.A. 
§6021

Primary Assist x 

Bed Bugs T14 §6021 Primary Primary x x
Dangerous buildings T17, M.R.S.A. 

§2851
x Primary x

Unclean premises T17 §2851 Primary Assist x 
Removal of private 
nuisances that could be 
injurious to health 

T 22 § 461 Primary Assist x

Removal of private 
nuisances 

T22 §1561 Primary Assist x 

Removal of dead animal T22 §1562 Assist x x Assist x 
Reporting adult abuse T22 §3477 Primary Assist x x
Reporting child abuse T22 §4011 Primary Assist x 
Bathing beaches T 22 § 461 Assist Primary 
Malfunctioning sewage 
disposal systems 

T30-A §3428 Assist Primary x 

Automobile junkyards T30-A §3751 Assist Primary 
Cemeteries T13 §1343 Primary x 
Mobile Home parks T10 §9003 Assist Primary x x

LHO: Local Health Officer 
CEO: Code Enforcement Officer 
LPI:    Local Plumbing Inspector 
ACO:  Animal Control Officer 
Professional Resource: Third party contractor 
Manufacturing Housing Board 
DHHS: Department of Health and Human Services personnel 



From: Matt Duross
To: Selectmen Board Clerk; treasurer
Subject: Agenda request
Date: Wednesday, January 11, 2023 1:39:08 PM

Good Afternoon, 
Per the Fire Commission's discussion at the last meeting, I would like the boards to
discuss and vote on two items.
1. Reimbursing the fire department's operating budget, specifically the facility operations
general maintenance line, for the cost of the clearing of a drainage pipe and pumping of a
catch basin by Clean Harbors.  The total cost was $3121.20, making each town's 50%
$1560.60. My request is for these funds to come from the GMFR building capital account.
2. The second is also a request from the GMFR building capital account to fund up to a total of
$2000, each town's 50% is $1000.00, to have an electrician move the reverse osmosis water
system and ansul fire protection system electrical circuits to the emergency electrical panel.
This would fix an issue where these two systems do not have power on the emergency backup
generator.

Please let me know if you have any questions,

****Available Funds in the GMFR building capital fund
$24,747.49   

ITEM #6: (b.) Fire Chief 

mailto:mduross@gmfd.org
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:treasurer@dayton-me.gov
mnikel
Highlight



ITEM #6: (d.) Expense Summary Report 1-12-23





















From: Marcel Desrosiers
To: Code Enforcement Officer
Cc: Selectmen Board Clerk; Matt Duross
Subject: Re: Board Meeting
Date: Thursday, January 5, 2023 11:29:36 AM

Thx Brenda.  I’m in full agreement. 

The town is in for huge liability if a public bldg 
Has a hazard and someone gets hurt.  

We can’t be everywhere all the time but if
Something happens we can show that the 
Town is pro-active and takes safety seriously 
Which in turn would limit the town’s liability 

Marcel Desrosiers 
Electrical Inspector 

On Jan 5, 2023, at 10:33 AM, Code Enforcement Officer <ceo@lyman-me.gov> wrote:



Good Morning, Lindsay, I would like to be on the next Select Board Meeting to discuss the suggestion
that the Board adopt the policy that any town-owned building or any building that is on town-owned
property be immediately inspected by the Electrical Inspector, Fire Chief and CEO and then reinspect on
a regular basis, maybe every three years thereafter, especially buildings that the public makes use of –
Library, perhaps Transfer Station, maybe even Bunganut Lake buildings.  There probably aren’t many
buildings.   I’m sure the Fire Department is fine but it should be included just for the sake of record
keeping.   And then, any report that comes from the inspections should be provided to the Select Board.

I am copying the Fire Chief and Electrical Inspector on this email in case they want to chime in.  I feel that
this is important to ensure safety and that possible liability is avoided.  I think it should probably be on
the agenda as a stand-alone topic instead of as a part of my regular report so that if any of the public is
interested in the subject, they will know it’s being discussed. 

Thank you

 

Brenda Charland
Code Enforcement Officer

 

11 So. Waterboro Road, Lyman, ME 04002

<image001.png>
207-247-0647

<image002.png>
207-468-3220
<image003.png>
   ceo@lyman-me.gov 
<image004.png>
 lyman-me.gov

ITEM #6: (e.) CEO

mailto:lyman.electrical.inspector@gmail.com
mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:mduross@gmfd.org
mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/


Report to Selectmen 

Month of December 2022 

2022-2023 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $7,417,133.10 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     41,542.02    

Total Tax Commitment: $7,458,675.12 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $       1,895.40 

Abatements Granted YTD: $    4,527.90 

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $       968.61 

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $   38,033.08 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:   $  60,203.66 

Online Rapid Renewal Service      13,720.31 

Total Vehicle Excise   $  73,923.79 

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:   $          00.00  

Online Registration Service   $____  30.40          

Total Boat Excise    $          30.40 

Total Excise   $  73,954.19 

Excise Tax Reimbursement   10/23/2022    $     9,877.52 

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $ 628,297.48 

Respectfully submitted:  Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #6: (f.) Tax Clerk



ITEM #7: (b.) ARPA Memo





























From: Town Clerk
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Cc: Thomas Hatch; Jessica Picard
Subject: RE: Rabies clinic
Date: Monday, January 9, 2023 8:55:58 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

What ever needs to be done. I don’t have a copy of that policy in my book. May I please have a copy so I can include

it. This is a great opportunity for those not able to get veterinarian appointments before Feb. 1st, which is when the
State kicks in the $25 late fee for licensing dogs.
Thank you,
Polly

From: Selectmen Board Clerk <selectboard@lyman-me.gov> 
Sent: Friday, January 6, 2023 4:00 PM
To: Town Clerk <townclerk@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Ralph Blackington <RalphB@lyman-me.gov>; Thomas Hatch <thomash@lyman-me.gov>; Jessica Picard
<jessicap@lyman-me.gov>; John Tibbetts <johnt@lyman-me.gov>; David Alves <davida@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: RE: Rabies clinic

Hi Polly,

Per our policy this will need select board approval.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Select Board Clerk
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 
207-499-7562

selectboard@lyman-me.gov 
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

ITEM #7: (c.) Mail Subscription Request, email

mailto:townclerk@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:thomash@lyman-me.gov
mailto:jessicap@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/






From: Town Clerk <townclerk@lyman-me.gov> 
Sent: Friday, January 6, 2023 3:02 PM
To: Selectmen Board Clerk <selectboard@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: FW: Rabies clinic

From: Valerie Cole <outlook_CE5D89E9B5522246@outlook.com> 
Sent: Friday, January 6, 2023 1:27 PM
To: Town Clerk <townclerk@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: Rabies clinic

Good Afternoon-

Would you please post the following in your email newsletter?

Thank you!

Valerie Cole
Andy’s Agway
207-282-2998

RABIES CLINIC Saturday, Jan 28th, 10-2 for dogs, cats, small animals. Location is Andy’s Agway, 13 Cole
Farm Rd (off River Rd) in Dayton. $15 for rabies vaccine, $25 for microchipping.
No appt needed but PLEASE- dogs on leashes, cats and others in carriers. Dr Claire Tusch is the attending
veterinarian.
FMI 207-282-2998

Sent from Mail for Windows

mailto:townclerk@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:outlook_CE5D89E9B5522246@outlook.com
mailto:townclerk@lyman-me.gov
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986






Page 1 of 11 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Mowing and Landscape Maintenance 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 17th  day of January, 2023 by and between the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN 

OF LYMAN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and located in the County of York, 

State of Maine (hereinafter “TOWN” , “OWNER”) and William PJ Single / KCB Landscaping, (hereinafter 

“Contractor”).  

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, after due consideration of the mutual promises made by each party to the other, the parties covenant and 

agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all of the services, materials and perform all of the work as described in the

Request for Proposals and Specifications entitled: “Mowing Bid Specs” (hereinafter Exhibit A) that it shall do everything 

required by this agreement, the conditions of the agreement (together with the general, supplementary and other 

conditions, if any), in return for payment as agreed to as follows: 

Year 1 (March 1, 2023 – November 30, 2023) $48,420.84 

Year 2 (March 1, 2024 – November 30, 2024) $48,420.84 plus federal cost of living 

Year 3 (March 1, 2025 – November 30, 2025) $Year 2 amount plus federal cost of living 

Year 4 (March 1, 2026 – November 30, 2026) $Year 3 amount plus federal cost of living 

Year 5 (March 1, 2027 – November 30, 2027) $Year 4 amount plus federal cost of living 

Federal cost of living increase will be determined annually based off the cost-of-living adjustment as reported by 

Social Security administration 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion, and the coordination 

of all services furnished by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall, without additional 

compensation, correct or revise any errors or deficiencies in his services. Deficiencies are defined as willful or negligent 

acts that distort or falsify or otherwise fail to comply to the terms of agreement or meet the state of the art of the products 

and services developed and provided hereunder, or willful or negligent non assignment of personnel or assignment of 

unqualified personnel to perform duties hereunder.  

Neither Town’s review, approval, or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the services shall be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and the CONTRACTOR shall remain liable in accordance with applicable law for all damages to Town 

caused by the CONTRACTOR’S willful or negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this Agreement. 

ITEM #7: (e.) Mowing Contract KCB



Page 2 of 11 

II. TERM: AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION: EXTENSION OF TERM

The term of this agreement shall be for five (5) years for a period commencing March 1st and be completed on or

by November 30th the same year, each year of this contract, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. The Town holds 

the option to renew contract beyond the five (5) years upon mutual agreement between the parties. The Town holds the 

option to NOT renew for any reason. Each year of this agreement is subject to the appropriation by the annual Town 

Meeting. If the Town Meeting fails to authorize such funding during any year of this Agreement, the parties shall 

negotiate the contract price for that year, or this Agreement shall be suspended until sufficient funds are appropriated. The 

Town holds the option to NOT renew the contract on poor performance.  

Required services to be performed shall be completed strictly according to the request for proposal and 

specifications entitled “Mowing Bid Specs”, Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR’S failure to adequately perform mowing and 

landscape maintenance per this Agreement shall be cause for termination of this contract pursuant to Paragraph XII. 

III. INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees and agents from

and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising out of or resulting from 

the performance (or nonperformance) of the work required under this Agreement and is caused in whole or in part by an 

intentional or negligent act or omission of CONTRACTOR, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by it, or anyone 

for whose acts it may be liable, regardless of whether such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party 

indemnified under this paragraph. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity if that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this paragraph.  

IV. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall provide the following insurances

Public Liability Insurance (or Commercial General Liability) in the amount of not less than One Million

Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages 

that may arise from operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-

8118, that increases the limitation of liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount 

of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act.  

Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined 

single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise from operations 

under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of 

liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than 

the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance in amounts required by Maine law and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as 

necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event the Contractor is not required to carry workers compensation 

according to Maine law, then the Contractor must provide the Town with an approved independent contractors status from 

the State of Maine.  



Page 3 of 11 

In addition, the contractor must complete and submit a document entitled “Town of Lyman, Hold Harmless 

Agreement” as per Town Policy and submit a W9 form, if not already on record.  

Deductible Amount: The deductible amount in any insurance policy required under this section shall not exceed 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) without the prior written consent of the TOWN. 

All such insurance policies shall name the TOWN and its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds, 

except that purpose of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, CONTRACTOR instead may provide a written waiver of 

subrogation rights against the TOWN, as permitted by Maine law. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies 

authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Maine, shall be in form satisfactory to the TOWN and shall 

contain a provision prohibiting cancellation except upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the TOWN and 

shall contain a complete waiver by the insurer of subrogation against the TOWN. All such insurance policies will be 

primary in the event of a loss arising from CONTRACTOR’S performance and shall provide that where there is more 

than one insured, the policy will operate, except for the limitations of liability, as if there were a separate policy covering 

each insured. CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under the Agreement until it has obtained all insurance 

coverages required under this subparagraph and any insurance policies have been approved by the TOWN.  

All such insurance policies shall have a retroactive date which is earlier of the date of the Agreement between the 

parties or CONTRACTOR’S commencement of services hereunder. 

V. PERMITS AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the cost, acquisition and maintenance of any permits or licenses

necessary for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

VI. SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools, and equipment, except as otherwise

specified herein, and do everything necessary and proper to satisfactorily perform the Services required by this 

Agreement. 

The term of this agreement shall be commencing March 1st, 2023 and be completed by November 30th, 2023 

And for four (4) additional years, 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 unless sooner termination as provided herein. The Town holds 

the option to renew contract upon mutual agreement between parties. When the specification calls for a task (e.g. mowing) 

to be completed multiple times over the course of the contract, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that it schedules those tasks 

with appropriate frequency so that all Town grounds are kept neat and properly landscaped at all times.  

CONTRACTOR’S failure to adequately maintain Town grounds by allowing them to become overgrown or 

unsightly shall be cause for termination of this contract pursuant to Paragraph XII.  

VII. CONTRACTOR’S OBLIGATIONS

The CONTRACTOR warrants: 

a. That it will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools, and equipment, except as otherwise specified

herein, and do everything necessary and proper to satisfactorily perform the Services required by this

Agreement.



Page 4 of 11 

b. That it is financially solvent, is experience in and competent to perform the Services and is able to furnish the

vehicles, materials, personnel, tools and equipment to be furnished by it.

c. That it has carefully examined the Request for Proposals and Specifications, this Agreement and the site of

services and has conducted its own investigation of the nature and location of the Services, the character of

equipment and personnel needed to perform the Services and all conditions which may in any way affect the

performance of the Services.

d. That the CONTRACTOR will commence any and all maintenance AFTER 7:00 AM (EST)

VIII. CONTRACT PRICE/ PROGRESSIVE PAYMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit for OWNER’S approval, a monthly invoice for 1/9 the yearly amount to be paid

each month for nine (9) months starting in March of the year 2023. The OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR such 

approved amounts within thirty (30) days from OWNER’S receipt of said invoice.  

IX. ASSIGNMENT

Neither party to the contract shall assign the Agreement without the written consent of the other.

CONTRACTOR shall not assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the previous written consent 

of the TOWN.  

X. GUARANTEE

To the extent construction or materials are provided in the provision of services hereunder, the CONTRACTOR

and the subcontractors, if any, shall guarantee their work against any defects in workmanship and materials for a period of 

one (1) year from the date of the OWNER’S written acceptance of the project, and agree to repair or replace at no cost or 

expense to the OWNER all work, materials and fixtures at any time during said (1) one-year period.  

The CONTRACTOR represents that in performance of its obligations hereunder, it will perform in accordance 

with applicable standards of conduct for professional in the field.  

XI. DISPUTES

Except as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, all disputes, claims, counterclaims, and other matters in

question between CONTRACTOR and TOWN arising out of or relating to the Agreement shall be decided by a Maine 

court of competent jurisdiction. This Agreement is made and shall be construed under the laws of the State of Maine. 

Except as otherwise expressly agreed by the parties exclusive venue for any such civil action shall be in York County, 

Maine 

XII. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this contract without cause upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party.

In the event of such termination, TOWN shall pay CONTRACTOR for all work satisfactorily performed prior to the 

actual termination. Furthermore, if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform according to the terms of this contract at the 

time and in the manner specified, TOWN shall have all legal and equitable remedies including termination for cause 

effective immediately upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR will be paid for all work which is 



Page 5 of 11 

satisfactorily done by that time and TOWN shall have no obligation or liability to CONTRACTOR for any remaining 

balance or compensation under the contract.  

XIII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws and

regulations, and any applicable amendments thereto. 

XIV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: AMENDMENTS

This Agreement and its Exhibits represent and contain the entire agreement between the parties. Any amendments

to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by both OWNER and CONTRACTOR. 

XV. SUBCONTRACTS

The CONTRACTOR shall not sublet any part of this Agreement without the prior written permission of the

OWNER. The CONTRACTOR agrees that it is fully responsible to the OWNER for the acts and omissions of its 

subcontractors and if persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as it is for the acts and omissions of persons 

directly employed by it.  

As part of this work required the application of pesticides, company may be required to produce a Maine 

Pesticides License, whether by subtract company license.   

XVI. USE OF PREMISES

The CONTRACTOR shall confine its apparatus, the storage of materials and the operations of its workers to

limits indicated by law, ordinances and permits and shall not otherwise unreasonably encumber the premises with its 

materials. If any part of the project is completed and ready for use, the OWNER may, by written and mutual consent, 

without prejudice to any of its rights of the CONTRACTOR, enter in and make sure of such completed parts of the 

project. Such use or occupancy shall in no case be construed as acceptance of any work, materials, or services.  

XVII. CLEANING UP

The CONTRACTOR shall at all times keep the premises free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish

caused by its employees or services, and at the completion of the services it shall remove all its rubbish from and about 

the project, and all its tools, scaffolding and surplus materials and shall leave the premises “broom clean” or its 

equivalent, unless more exactly specified. In case of dispute, the OWNER may remove rubbish and charge the cost to the 

CONTRACTOR.  

XVIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

All drawing, notes, documents, plans, and specifications or other material to be developed under this Agreement

shall become the property of the OWNER and be promptly delivered to the OWNER upon completion of services under 

this Agreement or sooner upon OWNER’S request or the termination of this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall be 



Page 6 of 11 

responsible for the protection and/or replacement of any work or materials in its possession, including work or materials 

provided to the CONTRACTOR 

XIX. DISCLAIMER

CONTRACTOR has inspected the conditions of the premises and with full knowledge thereof agrees to take

them as is, with no warranties express or implied excepting those express statements in this Agreement 

XX. FORCE MAJEURE

Provided such part gives written notice to the other of such event, a party shall not be liable for its failure to

perform its respective obligations under this Agreement, if prevented from so doing by any cause beyond the reasonable 

control of such party as, but not limited to, strikes, lockouts, or failure of supplies or inability by the exercise of 

reasonable diligence, to obtain supplies, parts, or employees necessary to perform such obligations, or because of war or 

other emergency. The time within which such obligations shall be performed shall be extended for a period of time 

equivalent to the delay from such cause.  

XXI. NON-WAIVER

Failure of a party to this Agreement to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the

right to enforce any subsequent breach of that provision or any other provision of the Agreement. 

XXII. RELEASE OF INFORMATION

During the performance of services, any material, prepared or assembled by the CONTRACTOR under this

Agreement shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the CONTRACTOR other than as called for 

herein without prior written authorization from the OWNER 

XXIII. NOTICES

Any notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent via United States mail, postage pre-paid,

first class, return receipt requested, to the following: 

TOWN: Lyman Select Board 

Town of Lyman 

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

CONTRACTOR: KCB Landscaping 

Attn: William PJ Single 

107 Munnick Point Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 



Page 7 of 11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN has caused this 

agreement to be signed and sealed by its Select Board hereunto duly authorized, and _KCB Landscaping_ has 

caused this Agreement to be signed and sealed by _William PJ Single_ hereunto duly authorized, the day and 

date first above written.  

_________________________________ 

Ralph Blackington, Chair 

_________________________________ 

Thomas Hatch, Vice Chair 

_________________________________ 

David Alves 

_________________________________ 

John Tibbetts 

_________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_________________________________ 

Date 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Contractor Witness 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Position  Date 



Page 8 of 11 

Exhibit A 

Town of Lyman 

Mowing Bid Specs 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Bunganut Field Aerate 3 Aerate areas showing compaction clean up 
all leaves and debris left over from winter 

Bunganut Field Spring cleanup 1 Clean up all leaves and debris. 
Bunganut Field Fall clean up 1 Clean up all leaves and debris 
Bunganut Field Mow outside of ball field by 

concession stand 
26 Area is between ball field and street. Also 

area from concession stand to parking lot 
Mow ball field inside of ball 
fence 

26 Normal mowing will be 3” (inches). At end 
of July 

Bunganut Field Mow ball field second time 10 Mow second time for ten weeks up to the 
start of September 

Bunganut Field Overseed thin grass areas 3 Use Kentucky Blue Grass - three Varieties 
Minimum Apply Starter fertilizer 

Bunganut Field Open irrigation system, spring 1 Connect suction line and prime pump. 
Check each zone ,and adjust heads for 
proper coverage and 

Bunganut Field Check irrigation operation and 
coverage 

3 irrigation system check in June ,July, August 

Bunganut Field Winterize irrigation system 1 Drain system and blow out each zone with 
compressed air 

Bunganut Field Hook up pump from pond 1 Install pump on 2" line from Bunganut 
pond to irrigation pond 

Bunganut Field Winterize pump from pond 1 Drain line from Bunganut pond to irrigation 
pond and remove pump for winter storage 

Bunganut Field Rd1 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 
application 

Bunganut Field Rd2 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 
application 

Bunganut Field Rd3 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 
application 

Bunganut Field Rd4 fertilizer grub 1 Fertilizer with insect and grub control. 
Maximum rate application 

Bunganut Field Rd5 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 
application 

Bunganut Field Spot spray for weeds 3 Spot spray clover and weeds with 
momentum 

Bunganut Field Lime 1 Apply Lime at regular rate 
Bunganut Field Soil test 1 Submit to U of Maine or Siteone for 

analysis 
Bunganut Field Infield grooming, remove grass 

growth and grade infield 
3 Remove grass and weeds from infield and 

grade for 
Bunganut Field Dethatch lawn entire complex 1 Dethatch and bag debris 



Page 9 of 11 

Exhibit A 

Town of Lyman 

Mowing Bid Specs 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Bunganut Lower 
Parking Lot 

Mow 12 Mow at 3” (inches) 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Bunganut Park Spring Clean Up 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris left over from 
winter 

Bunganut Park Mow all grass areas 24 Mow at 3” (inches) 
Bunganut Park Soil Test 1 Submit to U of Maine or Siteone for 

analysis 
Bunganut Park Rd1 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Bunganut Park Rd 2 fertilizer with grub control 1 Fertilizer with insect and grub control. 

Maximum rate application 
Bunganut Park Rd 3 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Bunganut Park Fall cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris 
Bunganut Park Lime 1 Apply Lime at regular rate 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Chadbourne Field Spring Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris left over from 
winter 

Chadbourne Field Fall Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris 
Chadbourne Field Soil Test 1 Submit to U Maine or Siteone for analysis 
Chadbourne Field Mow 26 Mow at 3” (inches) 
Chadbourne Field Rd 1 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Chadbourne Field Rd 2 Fertilizer with grub control 1 Fertilizer with insect and grub control. 

Maximum rate application 
Chadbourne Field Rd 3 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Chadbourne Field Lime 1 Apply Lime at regular rate 
Chadbourne Field Infield Grooming 3 Remove grass and weeds from infield and 

grade for baseball operation. 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Rhodes Hall Spring Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris left over from 
winter 

Rhodes Hall Mow 6 
Rhodes Hall Fall Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris 



Page 10 of 11 

Exhibit A 

Town of Lyman 

Mowing Bid Specs 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Fire Dept. Spring Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris left over from 
winter 

Fire Dept. Fall Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris 
Fire Dept. Soil Test 1 Submit to U Maine or Siteone for analysis 
Fire Dept. Mow 24 Mow at 3” (inches) 
Fire Dept. Rd 1 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Fire Dept. Rd 2 Fertilizer with grub control 1 Fertilizer with insect and grub control. 

Maximum rate application 
Fire Dept. Rd 3 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Fire Dept. Lime 1 Apply Lime at regular rate 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Monument Square Spring Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris left over from 
winter 

Monument Square Mow 12 Mow at 3” (inches) 
Monument Square Fall Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris 
Monument Square Rd 1 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Monument Square Rd 2 Fertilizer with grub control 1 Fertilizer with insect and grub control. 

Maximum rate application 
Monument Square Rd 3 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Monument Square Lime 1 Apply Lime at regular rate 
Monument Square Trim trees in yard 1 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Town Hall Spring Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris left over from 
winter 

Town Hall Mow 24 Mow at 3” (inches) 
Town Hall Dethatch lawn 1 
Town Hall Rd1 Fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Town Hall Rd2 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Town Hall Rd3 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 
Town Hall Rd4 fertilizer grub 1 Fertilizer with insect and grub control. 

Maximum rate application 
Town Hall Rd5 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 

application 



Page 11 of 11 

Exhibit A 

Town of Lyman 

Mowing Bid Specs 

Location Task Quantity Description of Task 

Town Hall Rd6 fertilizer slow release 1 75% slow release fertilizer. Maximum rate 
application 

Town Hall Spot Spray for weeds 3 Spot spray clover and weeds with 
momentum 

Town Hall Lime 1 Apply Lime at regular rate 
Town Hall Soil Test 1 Submit to U of Maine or Siteone for 

analysis 
Town Hall Mulch Gardens 1 Use at least 1” (inch) of dark mulch 
Town Hall Weed gardens 3 Weed three (3) times through season 
Town Hall Trim tree branches/ tree line 1 All around property 
Town Hall Fall Cleanup 1 Cleanup all leaves and debris 



WINTER ROADS MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

This contract is between the Inhabitants of the Town of Lyman (referred to as “we” or “our” or “the 
Town” and Dayton Snow Fighters (referred to as “you, Your, You’re, Contractor, Independent 
Contractor”).  When this contract refers to you, it includes your employees and agents.  The subject of 
this contract is winter road maintenance (sanding, salting, and plowing). 

1. SERVICES:  What and When

You agree to remove ice and snow and control ice on the sections of all Lyman town ways (“roads”) 
listed in the attached Exhibit A. 

This agreement is for a five (5) year period beginning on May 1, 2023 and terminating on April 30, 2028 
with a two (2) year option to extend to April 30, 2030.  The Town holds the option to renew the contract 
for Two (2) year periods, and biannually, beyond the initial Two (2) year extension as offered herein. 
The Town holds the option to not renew for any reason.   

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

You and your agents and employees, during the performance of this contract, shall act in an independent 
Contractor capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the Town of Lyman.  Any manpower 
needed to fulfill the obligations of this contract shall be employed by you and you shall be solely 
responsible for complying with applicable state and federal laws including, but not limited to, worker’s 
compensation law, employment security law and minimum wage law. You shall ensure compliance with 
all commercial vehicle operation laws, including drug and alcohol testing for all employees holding 
commercial drivers license certifications. We assume no liability for testing or follow-up procedures to 
ensure your compliance.  

As an independent Contractor, you are also responsible for maintaining your equipment in a safe, 
operable and legal condition.  All equipment must be available for inspection by the Select Board and/or 
Road Commissioner by August of each year and must have a valid State of Maine Inspection Sticker and 
registration throughout the term of this Agreement. 

3. MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS

A) You will commence plowing and sanding operations when snow on the pavement has reached a
depth of one-half inch (1/2”) if the snow is wet and one inch (1”) if dry.  Operations will continue
until highways are cleared of snow to the outside shoulders.  During severe storms or drifting,
plows will be operated so as to maintain two-way traffic.  Immediately after the extreme
conditions have subsided, snow will be removed three and one-half feet (3 ½’) to the outside of
the shoulders of the highways.  You must have supervisory personnel or radio equipped vehicles
situated so that messages of urgency can reach the plowing or sanding vehicles within a half-
hour period.

B) You will follow Maine Department of Transportation’s methods and precautions of plowing and
sanding (copy provided to you).  Such methods and practices as excessive speed of plows and
disregard of mailboxes must be controlled by you and will be monitored by the Town.

ITEM #7: (f.) Plowing  Contract Dayton Snow Fighters



C) The Town agrees to provide sufficient sand and salt for operations required by the agreement.
You agree to pay particular attention to the sanding of hills, curves and intersections, and to
apply extra sand and salt to such locations when necessary.  The Road Commissioner and /or
Select Board will determine salt usage.

D) You will remove compacted snow and ice from highways, insofar as possible, so that three and
one-half feet (3 ½’) of pavement will be exposed on each side of the centerline.

E) You will reimburse the Town for the replacement of guardrail, guardrail posts, signs, or sign posts
which are damaged by reason of snow removal operations under this agreement, if the Road
Commissioner or Select Board determines, in their sole discretion, that such damage could
reasonably have been avoided by you.

F) You will perform duties for the Town before proceeding to private contracts.  Town-owned
equipment and sand will not be used by you for private use.

G) The Road Commissioner will set the priorities in the maintenance of primary and secondary roads,
said priority to be followed by you.

H) You agree to maintain and make available for your responsibilities under this contract a minimum
of five (5) trucks with sanders and a loader.

I) You will follow the Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) currently in place for the Salt Shed
regarding salt and sand handling and containment.

4. INSURANCE

You shall provide the following insurances

A) Public Liability Insurance (or Commercial General Liability) in the amount of not less than One

Million Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit, to protect the You and the TOWN from claims

and damages that may arise from operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by

You or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine

Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of liability of the TOWN

under such Act, You shall increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of

the liability of the TOWN established under the Act.

B) Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

combined single limit, to protect the You and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise

from operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by You or by anyone directly or

indirectly employed by it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14

M.R.S.A §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of liability of the TOWN under such Act, You shall

increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of the liability of the TOWN

established under the Act



C) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in amounts required by Maine law and Employer’s Liability

Insurance, as necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event the Contractor is not required to

carry workers compensation according to Maine law, then the Contractor must provide the Town

with an approved independent Contractor status from the State of Maine.

In addition, the You must complete and submit a document entitled “Town of Lyman, Hold 

Harmless Agreement” as per Town Policy and submit a W9 form, if not already on record.  

Deductible Amount: The deductible amount in any insurance policy required under this section 

shall not exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) without the prior written consent of the 

TOWN. 

All such insurance policies shall name the TOWN and its officers, agents, and employees as 

additional insureds, except that purpose of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, Contractor instead may 

provide a written waiver of subrogation rights against the TOWN, as permitted by Maine law. All 

insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State 

of Maine, shall be in form satisfactory to the TOWN and shall contain a provision prohibiting 

cancellation except upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the TOWN and shall contain a 

complete waiver by the insurer of subrogation against the TOWN. All such insurance policies will be 

primary in the event of a loss arising from Your performance and shall provide that where there is 

more than one insured, the policy will operate, except for the limitations of liability, as if there were a 

separate policy covering each insured. You shall not commence work under the Agreement until it has 

obtained all insurance coverages required under this subparagraph and any insurance policies have 

been approved by the TOWN.  

All such insurance policies shall have a retroactive date which is earlier of the date of the Agreement 
between the parties or Your commencement of services hereunder. 

5. BILLS AND CLAIMS

Except as otherwise noted in paragraph 1 above, as an independent Contractor, you are responsible for 
all bills for labor, material, equipment and fuel and other items that are incurred in the performance of 
this contract.  The Town will not pay such bills. 

6. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: AMENDMENT

This Agreement and its Exhibits represent and contain the entire agreement between the parties. Any 
amendments to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.  

7. BREACH OF CONTRACT

If you fail to perform according to the terms of this contract at the time and in the manner specified, 
that failure shall be a breach of contract. 



In the event of a breach, the Town (through its Road Commissioner or Select Board) shall immediately 
give oral notice to you.  You will then be required to perform within a reasonable time.  “Reasonable 
time” may vary depending on the nature of the breach and road and weather conditions.  In the event 
that you still do not (for whatever reason) perform your duties in the time stated, the Town shall have 
the following options: 

A) Terminate This Contract: The Town may terminate the contract by sending you a written notice,
stating the reason for termination.  You will be paid for all work that is satisfactorily done by that
time, but the remainder of the money due you under this contract may be used to obtain another
You to maintain the roads.  Likewise, money from your bond may be used to cover this cost.

B) Substitution:  The Town may hire a substitute contractor to plow and sand the roads for any
period of time we consider necessary.  This substitution will be paid with money from your bond.
If there are problems obtaining the bond money, substitution will be paid from the remainder of
any money due to you (but unearned) under this contract.

C) The Town may also seek any other legal remedies available to enforce this contract.

8. INDEMNIFICATION

You agree to hold the Town, its officers, agents and employees harmless from any claim for death, injury, 
property damage or other loss, which may result from your performance of road maintenance under this 
contract.  In the event that such a claim is made against the Town, its officers, agents or employees, 
you will defend the Town and you will pay any amount (indemnify) for which the Town may be held 
liable in a legal action for such claims. 

9. SUPERVISION AND CONTROL

As an independent Contractor, you have the right and duty to supervise and control your own employees, 
agents and equipment.  The Road Commissioner has the right to inspect road maintenance operations 
and notify you of any problems, errors or non-performance.  The Road Commissioner may order that 
work be done in a satisfactory manner, to be determined by him.  He may also determine the priority of 
roads to be plowed and sanded. 

10. NON-ASSIGNMENT

You may not assign this contract without the written consent of the Select Board. 

11. NON-APPROPRIATION

Each year of this Agreement is subject to the appropriation by Annual Town Meeting. If the Town Meeting 
fails to authorize such funding during any year of this Agreement, the parties shall negotiate the contract 
price for that year, or this Agreement shall be suspended until sufficient funds are appropriated.  



12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

In the event of dispute regarding the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties agree to 
mediate in good faith prior to pursuing litigation.  

13. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Payment schedule will be per month; payments to be made on an eleven month basis 
starting July through May of each contract years.  

2023-2024 $ 

 July 1, 2023 - April 30, 2024 - $ month May 15, 2024  $450,000.00 

2024-2025 $ 

July 1, 2024 - April 30, 2025 - $ month May 15, 2025  $463,500.00 

2025-2026 $ 

July 1, 2025 – April 30, 2026 - $ month May 15, 2026 - $477,400.00 

2026-2027 $ 

July 1, 2026 – April 30, 2027 - $ month May 15, 2027 - $491,800.00 

2027-2028 $ 

July 1, 2027 – April 30, 2028 - $ month May 15, 2028 - $506,500.00 

*Contractor agrees to pay no more than $6.00/gallon of diesel fuel during the initial 5-
year contract. If fuel exceeds $6.00/gallon the Town of Lyman will reimburse the
Contractor, the excess amount.

*Should the Governor declare an official state of emergency and additional support
equipment is needed to open roads, the Town of Lyman will be billed a fair market value.

*During the initial 5-year contract, Contractor agrees to haul, mix, and stockpile sand/salt
at fair market value.

TWO YEAR OPTION: 
2028-2029 $ 

July 1, 2028 – April 30, 2029 - $ month May 15, 2029 - $ 

2029-2030 $ 

July 1, 2029 – April 30, 2030 - $ month May 15, 2030 - $ 



In witness whereof, the said Inhabitants of the Town of Lyman has caused this agreement to be signed 
and sealed by its Select Board hereunto duly authorized, and Dayton Snow Fighters has caused this 
Agreement to be signed and sealed by Paul. G Poirier hereunto duly authorized, this 17th Day of 
January year 2023. 

WITNESS 

Signature Contractor Signature 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
Print Name Print Name 

______________________________ 
Title 

Date: 

INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN 

____________________ _____________________________ 
Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair) 

Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

David Alves, Select Board 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
Jessica Picard, Select Board  

______________________________ ______________________________ 
 John Tibbetts, Select Board 

Rev. 1/10/2023 



EXIBIT A 
LYMAN TOWN ROAD LIST (2022) 

Alewive Road 

Alfred Road 

Bartlett’s Bridge Road 

Beaulieu Drive 

Birch Acres 

Blackberry Lane (PLOWED BY WATERBORO) 

Blue Jay Road 

Brock Road 

Causeway 

Caya Lane 

Church Street 

Clarks Bridge Road 

Country Way 

Davis Road 

Day Road 

Deer Hill Road 

Deering Ridge Road (PLOWED BY WATERBORO) 

Desert Brook 

Drown Lane 

Fawn Circle 

Fox Meadow Run 

Frost Road 

Fryes Bridge Road 

Galaxy Drive 

Goodwin Mills Road 

Grasshopper Lane 

Graves Road 

Hamilton Road 

Hanson Lane 

Hill Road 

Homestead Drive 

Howitt Road 

Huff Road 

Hunters Lane 

Jasons Way 

John Street 

Kennebunk Pond Road 

Lords Lane 

Mast Road 

Middle Road 

Murphy’s Way 

New Road 

New Road Circle 

Oak Way 

Old Falls Road 

Old Kennebunk Road 

Old North Berwick Road 

Oscar Littlefield Road 

Poor Farm Road 

Rhode Island Avenue 

Rustic Lane 

Ruth Lane 

Shaker Hill Road (PLOWED BY ALFRED) 

Shore Road 

South Street 

South Waterboro  Road 

Spikehorn Circle 

Stoney Brook Lane 

Tibbetts Lane 

Village Circle 

Walker Road 

Whitetail Way 

Williams Road 

Lyman Salt Shed 



EXIBIT B 
SCOPE OF WORK 

A) Commence plowing and sanding operations when snow on the pavement has reached a depth of
one-half (1/2”) inch if the snow is wet, and one (1”) inch if the snow is dry. Operations will
continue until highways are cleared of snow to the outside shoulders. During severe storms of
drifting, plows will be operated so as to maintain two-way traffic. Immediately after extreme
conditions have subsided, snow will be removed three and one-half (3 ½’) feet to the outside of
the shoulders of the highways. Contractor MUST have supervisory personnel or radio equipped
vehicles situated so that messages of urgency can reach the plowing or sanding vehicles within a
half-hour period.

B) Contract must follow Maine Department of Transportation’s methods of precautions of plowing and
sanding.

C) Contractor will agree to pay particular attention to the sanding of hills, curves, and intersections,
and to apply extra sand and salt to such locations when necessary. Road Commissioner and/or
Select Board will determine salt usage.

D) Contractor will remove compacted snow and ice from highways, insofar as possible, so that three
and one-half feet (3 1/2 ‘) of pavement will be exposed on each side of the centerline.

E) Contractor will reimburse the Town for the replacement of guardrail, guardrail posts, signs, or sign
posts which are damaged by reason of snow removal operations if the Road Commissioner
determines that such damage could have reasonably been avoided by the Contractor.

F) Contractor will perform duties for the Town before proceeding to private contracts

G) Road Commissioner will set priorities in the maintenance of primary and secondary roads, said
priority to be followed by Contractor.

H) Contractor will supply and maintain a minimum of five (5) trucks with sanders, and loader in the
salt shed.

I) Contractor will follow the Standard Operation Procedure (SOP) currently in place for the Slat Shed
regarding salt and sand handling and containment.

J) The Town will supply 1500 tons of salt and 4000 yards of sand to be mixed with salt and 400 tons
of salt to be applied directly to the roads. If more salt is deemed necessary, the Town will supply it
at the Town’s expense. (Contractor agrees to haul, mix and stockpile said materials at fair market
value)

K) Major intersections, when snow build up is high enough as to impair vision from oncoming traffic,
snow will be moved by the Contractor.

L) Snowbanks will be pushed back as far as possible after the storm is complete as to allow for
drainage when there is thaw or rain.



ITEM#7: (j.) PO's Cemetery Tree Removal










